15. August 2022

Europa | Software

DR. KALLIWODA RESEARCH GmbH

Comprehensive Update BUY

Target-Price EUR

Industry:	,	Cyber security
muusuy.	,	Syber security
Country:		Germany
ISIN:	[DE0007276503
Reuters:		YSNG.DE
Bloomberg:		YSN
Website:	wv	vw.secunet.com
Last price:		259.00
	High	Low
Price 52 W.:	608.00	245.00
Market cap. (EUR)		1.70 B
Number of shares (in mln))	6.50

Sh	 	L	_	_	_	

Giesecke + Devrient GmbH	7	75.12%
secunet AG	_	0.47%
Free float	•	24.41%

Dividend	in EUR
3 years	126.20%
52 weeks	-41.60%
26 weeks	-12.40%
4 weeks	-2.60%
Performance	

Dividend	III LOK
2021	5.38
2020	2.54
2019	1.56
2018	2.04
2017	1.20
2016	0.58

Chart: 12 Months



DR. KALLIWODA RESEARCH on Bloomberg Page: KALL

Analyst: Dr. Norbert Kalliwoda Email: nk@kalliwoda.com Phone: +49 69 97 20 58 53 www.kalliwoda.com

secunet AG

Germany's leading cybersecurity company

- Security Networks AG performs weaker in H1 2022 than in H1 2021: Group revenue amounts to EUR 135.5 million (-8.2% compared to H1 2021). EBIT is EUR 14.9 million (-38.4%).
- H2 is traditionally more substantial, and therefore secunet maintains its Company Guidance.
- Current assets amounted to €127m as of 30 June 2022 compared to €209m as of 31 December 2021, mainly due to the reduction in cash used for the SysEleven GmbH acquisition and the dividend payment.
- On 17 May 2022, secunet AG acquired all shares in SysEleven GmbH from Berlin through a purchase agreement. SysEleven GmbH is a cloud infrastructure specialist that offers cloud services, managed services, and managed Kubernetes.
- SysEleven GmbH should decisively improve secunet's market position in cloud and cloud security business areas.
- Company guidance for 2022 remains in place: Revenues of 320 million euros and EBIT of approx. 50 million euros.
- Due to higher capital market interest rates, the discount factor WACC in our DCF model increases, slightly reducing our fair value to ber share. Our rating is

Figures

in EURm	2020	2021	2022e	2023e	2024e	2025e	2026e	2027e
Net sales EBITDA EBIT Net income	285,591 59,697 51,639 34,984	337,620 73,812 63,879 42,980	addre		atsapp ı	number		and email eive the full
EPS BVPS	5.43 15.83	6.66 20.07	- Study.	. Ivially g	greeting	5		
RoE EBIT margin P/E P/BVPS EV/EBITDA	34.04% 18.08 % 75.54 25.91x 44.44x	33.11% 18.92 % 61.55 20.43x 35.94x			die Ihre	Kontal	ktdaten	Erhalt der und email iele Grüße

Source: Dr. Kalliwoda Research GmbH © 2022 & secunet AG

Table of Contents

1	Results of 2022 First Half Year	2
2	SWOT	5
3	Future goals and growth potential	6
4	Valuation	7
5	Profit and loss statements	Please send us your contact details and email
6	Balance sheet	address or <u>whatsapp</u> number to receive the full study. Many greetings
7	Cashflow-Statement	
8	Financial ratios	Bitte <u>senden</u> Sie <u>uns</u> für den <u>Erhalt</u> der gesamten Studie Ihre Kontaktdaten und email
8	Appendix: Equity Story, Growth drivers	Adresse oder whatsapp-Nummer. Viele Grüße
9	Company Profile	8
10	Business model	9
1	0.1 Public Sector	10
1	0.2 Business Sector	10
11	Shareholder structure	11
12	Digital Sovereignty in the Cloud	
Cor	itacts	14
Ma	terial Information, Disclosures and Disclair	mers 16

1 Results of 2022 First Half Year

Security Networks AG performs weaker in the first half of 2022 than in H1 2021, but the figures are still just within the expected range. The Executive Board assumes that the operating business will improve in the year's second half. The forecast for the full fiscal year 2022 with sales of 320 million euros and EBIT of approximately 50 million euros is confirmed, also because the company has strengthened itself with the acquisition of SysEleven. The results in detail are:

Company Analysis

- Group revenue is EUR 135.5 million (-8.2% at H1 2021).
- EBIT amounts to EUR 14.9 million (-38.4 %)
- Net income: EUR 10.1 million (-36.9 %)
- Diluted and basic earnings per share: 1.57 euros (H1: 2.48 euros)

Public Sector

Here secunet achieved

- revenue of €113.1 million (-7.6% compared with H1 2021)
- EBIT of Euro 14.2 million (-38.3%)

Due to decreasing pandemic-related market effects, the demand situation in the Public Sector business unit has returned to normal.

Business Sector

- Sales in the Business Sector business unit amounted to €22.4 million (-11.2% compared to the same period of the previous year).
- EBIT was €0.7 million (-41.7% compared to the same period of the previous year)

 The business targets companies in the private sector and the healthcare sector. The weakening development in these areas is due to lower demand for software licenses in the secunet connector area.

This area was particularly strong in the same period of the previous year. Large volume sales then also led to very high margins compared with the current reporting period.

Assets and financial position

secunet's capital structure is as follows:

- Non-current assets: EUR 128.8m compared with EUR 64.9m as of Dec. 31, 2021. This change in assets is due to the acquisition of SysEleven GmbH. Therefore, goodwill increased from EUR 10.3 million (Dec. 31, 2021) to EUR 57 million too. Intangible assets increased from 12.2 million euros (Dec. 31, 2021) to 30.5 million euros.
- Current assets amounted to 127 million euros as of Jun. 30, 2022, compared to 209 million euros as of Dec. 31, 2021, mainly due to the reduction in cash and cash equivalents used for the SysEleven GmbH acquisition and the dividend payment.
- As of Jun. 30, 2022, current liabilities amounted to 76 million euros and non-current liabilities to 73.1 million euros.
- Equity amounted to 106.7 million euros at the end of the year's first half, which corresponds to an equity ratio of 41.7% (compared to 47.4% at the end of the year). This

change in equity is due to the dividend payment of 34.8 million euros, withdrawn from retained earnings.

secunet financed the acquisition of SysEleven GmbH (EUR 49.4 million) from cash and equity too.

Challenges

- secunet AG had significantly benefited from the COVID-19 pandemic, especially last year, and the relaxation in all areas led to a drop in demand for secunet products
- The demand for software licenses, which affects the revenue area of the Business Sector, has decreased
- There are general bottlenecks in the supply of semiconductors and intermediate products. This led to postponements of customer projects in the reporting period. Management has countered this problem by increasing inventories at an early stage.
- secunet AG does not maintain any production sites or business relations in Ukraine or Russia. Therefore we don't expect disadvantages from the geopolitical tensions connected to the war.
- The German government intends to spend 100 billion euros to strengthen the German armed forces. Secunet expects the first possible orders next year at the earliest.

Acquisition of SysEleven GmbH

On May 17, 2022, secunet AG acquired all shares in SysEleven GmbH of Berlin through a purchase agreement. The purchase price was settled with equity. SysEleven GmbH is a cloud infrastructure specialist offering cloud services, managed services, and managed Kubernetes. From May 31, 2022, the company will be consolidated and assigned to secunet's Public Sector business unit. secunet will now be able to offer more solution offerings in the areas of cloud and cloud security.

Outlook

• secunet AG is sticking to the guidance it issued and is forecasting sales of €320 million (2021: €330 million) and EBIT of €50 million (2021: €59 million) for the fiscal year 2022

- 177 new employees have been hired, which could be a sign of a significant improvement in sales figures for the coming years
- In addition, secunet AG is forecasting a visible regeneration of the hardware market from 2023 onwards, which would ultimately increase demand in the Business Sector
- In the Public Sector, the company aims to improve its core technology and expand its existing customer base.

The focus of business activities in recent years has always been on the second half of the year due to procurement processes and public sector demand, so we expect better figures in H2/2022 than H1/2022.

2 SWOT

Strengths	Weaknesses		
 secunet specializes in areas of IT highsecurity and differentiates itself from the competition with proven and unique solutions Competitive advantage in the public sector thanks to long-standing partnerships such as the IT security partnership with the Federal Republic of Germany, which has been in place since 2004. High level of expertise in certification and approval processes for products up to the highest security level 	 One Weakness could be the weaker 2022 outlook, showing lower Revenue and a lower EBIT. Share price drop because of the weaker outlook 		
Opportunities	Threats		
 Increasing digitization and growing importance of IT security Strict regulations on IT security issues Digital sovereignty "Made in Germany" is in demand Increasing investment in cyber resilience (including in the defence context) 	 80-90% of secunet's business is with public-sector clients. Supply chain issues for intermediate products. More specifically the availability of semiconductors 		

3 Future goals and growth potential

secunet's overarching objective is to grow profitably and create sustainable value across all segments, nationally and internationally. In so doing, the company always pursue the goal of offering our customers the most effective IT security solutions and thus strengthening their digital sovereignty.

The stable basis for the further development of the company is and remains the Public Sector business segment, which secures reliable revenue fields and growth impulses. In the Business Sector business segment, secunet is continuing along the path it has taken and is consistently focusing the range of solutions on the requirements of the fast-growing future markets of eHealth, Industry 4.0 and the Internet of Things. Where there are worthwhile candidates, secunet will supplement its organic growth through targeted acquisitions. Two projects that the company brought to completion in 2021 and 2022 were the acquisitions of stashcat GmbH and SysEleven GmbH. With these takeovers, secunet is creating an additional range of products and services.

The company continue to pursue the internationalisation strategy in a targeted and proportionate manner. The focus here is on activities with the countries of the European Union and EU organisations as well as defence and space organisations. With the expansion of international sales activities and a more effective customer approach, secunet is focusing more strongly on the requirements of these target groups.

For FY 2021, secunet Group achieved a revenue increase of 18% from 285.6 million EUR to 337.6 million EUR and an EBIT increase of 24% from 51.6 million EUR to 63.9 million EUR. The reason for this growth is the very good performance of secunet products in both business segments. Two of the product groups which contributed the most to this positive development are the SINA product family and the secunet eHealth connector. secunet also benefited from corona related effects such as public clients and companies switching to a mobile office setting and needing to provide employees with secure workstations such as the SINA Workstation S. In comparison with the published forecast for 2021 which was already adjusted for the corona related economic boost, secunet was able to slightly exceed the targets.

The Group's revenue from the product business, which comprises hardware, software, maintenance, and support, amounts to 290.8 million EUR in 2021 and 46.8 million EUR from the provision of consulting and services. Sales from the Public Sector rose by 17% in 2021 to 278.1 million EUR. This growth was due to the excellent core business performance with the SINA product family but also because of the already mentioned corona related economic boost. This segment contributed 82% to the Group's total revenue.

In the Business Sector segment, sales revenue increased by 23% to 59.5 million EUR. The main reason for this was the excellent performance of the secunet eHealth Connector. This Business Sector contributed 18% to the Group's total revenue in 2021.

Gross profit on sales increase by 26% in 2021, while the cost of sales increased by 15% due to the increased material expenses because of the increased order volume. Selling expenses increase by 10% and general administrative costs increased by 15% because of the growth in the workforce.

The EBIT margin increased from 18.1% in 2020 to 18.9% in 2021.

In the Public Sector, EBIT grew by 7% while in the Business Sector generated a positive EBIT of 6.5 million EUR in comparison to 2020 where this number was -2.2 million EUR. The main reason for the Group's increases in EBIT is the higher demand for products in 2021, while the increase in the Business Sector EBIT is boosted by the sale of software upgrades of the secunet eHealth connector which led to license revenues with a favorable margin profile. As a result of these positive developments, the secunet group generated a net income for FY 2021 of 43.0 million EUR which equals a 23% increase compared to 2020.

4 Valuation

Our internal model with WACC of 7.3 % indicates a fair value of

Please send us your contact details and email address or whatsapp number to receive the full study. Many greetings

Bitte senden Sie uns für den Erhalt der gesamten Studie Ihre Kontaktdaten und email Adresse oder whatsapp-Nummer. Viele Grüße

8 Appendix: Equity Story, Growth drivers

- secunets objective remains the sustainable and profitable growth, which the management aims to achieve by further developing its public sector business segment, but also advance in the business sector division by developing its solution according to the requirements of markets such as eHealth, Industry 4.0, the Internet of Things, eGovernment and Cloud. Organic growth will be supplemented by mergers and acquisitions, one of which was completed during 2021, the acquisitions of stashcat GmbH. In 2022, secunet also acquired SysEleven GmbH.
- 2022 outlook remains weaker because of the expiration of the pandemic related benefits for secunet, as well as global bottlenecks in the supply of semiconductors. On the other hand, a potential growth driver for the future may be the decision of the German government to increase spending in the defense sector due to the current uncertain situation and potential war threats because of the Russia-Ukraine conflicts. Nevertheless, the opportunity this will create for secunet is not yet foreseeable.
- Development of new business models, demand for digital sovereignty "Made in Germany", increasing importance of IT security, specific requirements for IT security due to regulation and digitalization providing a real growth opportunity for securet.

9 Company Profile

securet is a Germany based IT security company, offering products and solutions for a secure digital infrastructure as well as protection against cyber attacks. The main fields of application are the following: Authorities, Administrations and Ministries, Defence and Space, Border Control and Police, Healthcare and Industry.

secunet offers ready-to-use products as well as individual consulting which help companies improve their digital security and drive their digital transformation forward.

secunet's key offering is the SINA product family while SINA stands for "Sichere Inter-Netzwerk Architektur".

The product portfolio includes components for the protected processing, storage and transmission of classified information (CI) over the internet approved by the German Federal Office for Information Security (BSI) up to the highest national and international classification levels.

The focus of the SINA product family is the protection of electronic information against unauthorized access. Ensuring this protection is a core task of any IT security precaution and

an indispensable basic requirement when implementing a security policy.

The product range includes workstations, servers, tablets, gateways, telephones, software tools.

The second relevant product family concerns the field of biometrics and is called "secunet border gears". This segment comprises the products "easygate", "easykiosk", "easytower" and "bocoa". For instance, the easygates are used to verify the authenticity of electronic identity documents. In addition, the system reads the facial image from the chip in the electronic identity document and compares the biometric data with the actual appearance of the traveler, which is captured by a facial image camera.

In this way, easykiosk, easytower and bocoa are also designed to minimize queues at border controls.

The third product group comprises healthcare with the secunet connector (one-box connector as well as two-box connector for data centers). The secunet connector is used by medical service providers such as practices, pharmacies and hospitals for highly secure access to the German telematics infrastructure. Due to its modular design, the connector can be expanded to include additional applications and possible uses.

In addition, there is the secunet edge.

A secure platform for Industrial Internet of Things (IIoT) and edge computing and combines three normally separate product categories into one solution for industry clients. IIoT gateway that connects machines with cloud platforms for Industry 4.0 scenarios; edge computing platform on industrial-grade hardware; and firewall with network monitoring and AI-based anomaly and threat detection that secures production assets and even legacy.

secunet has over 800 employees, is present in 12 location in Germany and currently has over 500 customers which include federal ministries and 20+ DAX listed companies. It has a market capitalization of 1.8B and is listed in the German Small Cap Index – SDAX.

10 Business model

secunet, Germany's leading cybersecurity company, is headquartered in Essen, but also has other locations in major German cities. They offer products, solutions and consulting services in the field of IT security. The product range includes services, hardware and software. secunet covers the entire value chain from analysis and design to development, integration, operation, maintenance, and support of solutions.

They are aimed at large-scale infrastructures and focus on areas with specific IT security

requirements (e.g. eGovernment, Biometrics, Cloud, eHealth, and Internet of Things).

In summary, the companies' business operations can be divided into two segments, the Public Sector and the Business Sector.

10.1 Public Sector

The Public Sector products are targeted towards public clients within and outside of Germany such as governmental organizations, organizations in the defense sector, EU organizations, security authorities and border police. This sector includes one of the bestselling product categories which is the SINA product portfolio. This product family offers different kinds of solutions for highly secure processing, transmission and storing of classified data up to the highest national and international classification levels. The Public Sector division also includes a wider range of products and services such as IT security consulting, Cloud Security, Biometrics, Border Control Systems, Military Grade Encryption and Public Key Infrastructures. The segment contributes approximately 82 % of total revenue and its sales rose by 17% to 278.1 million EUR compared to 237.1 million EUR for 2020. EBIT in this sector increased by 7% to 57.4 million. This growth was mainly driven by the SINA product family.

secunet has worked with well known and important clients in the sphere of the public sector such as the following: Federal Foreign Office, Federal Criminal Police office, Federal Office for Information Security, Federal Police, Fraport, Eurocontrol, Deutsche Rentenversicherung and Vienna International Airport.

10.2 Business Sector

The Business Sector division offers products and solutions to companies in the private sector, but also strongly focuses on the healthcare industry. Other industries to which secunet offers its solutions are finance, insurance and energy, utilities, telecommunications and manufacturing/production industries, automotive manufacturers and suppliers and KRITIS.

KRITIS are critical infrastructures which are organizations and facilities with important significance for the state community or society.

The most important product from this segment is the secunet eHealth connector which securely connects small and large medical facilities to the German telematics infrastructure.

This solution reliably protects medical and confidential data.

secunet edge, which is also part of the Business Sector and amongst the most important products is a platform which combines three different product categories into one. It serves as a security device, an IoT getaway providing connectivity to industrial clouds, and lastly as an industrial PC, computing intensive tasks.

Examples of consulting services offered to private companies are security assessments, security consulting and support for certification projects.

This segment is responsible of ca. 18% of the company's total revenue and recorded a 23% increase in sales for the year 2021 amounting to 59.5 million EUR and generated an EBIT of 6.5 million EUR in comparison to the loss of 2.2 million EUR in 2020. These significant increases are mainly due to the exceptional performance of the eHealth connector during the year 2021.

11 Shareholder structure

The share capital of secunet AG amounts to 6,500,000 EUR and is subdivided into 6,500,000 no-par value bearer shares. Each share grants the holder one vote at the Annual General Meeting and, in the event of a distribution, an equivalent dividend entitlement.

Giesecke + Devrient GmbH, Munich, is the majority shareholder with a direct holding of 75.12%, and is the parent company of secunet AG. As a strategic holding company, the owner-managed Giesecke + Devrient GmbH manages its affiliated companies, including secunet AG. The group of companies is internationally oriented and active in the field of banknote and securities printing as well as the development and production of security paper and banknote processing systems. In addition, the group of companies develops and manufactures magnetic strip and chip cards, predominantly for the telecommunications industry, for banks and for the healthcare sector. A further 0.47% of shares (30,498 shares) are held by secunet AG itself. The free float as at 31 December 2021 was 24.41%. It was distributed among a regionally broadly diversified shareholder structure with an increasing share of international investors, primarily from the USA, UK and Scandinavia."

There are no share option programmes or convertible bonds that could dilute the shareholding.

12 Digital Sovereignty in the Cloud

For secunet, Cloud Computing is essential because it enables organizations and people to have access and process their data at any time and any place. This works based on infrastructures operated by third parties. However, Cloud computing also poses certain risks to companies who make use of this technology because it makes them vulnerable to cyberattacks. For this reason, companies, as well as high level authorities with high protection requirements make use of secunet's product and solutions. One example of such a solution is secustack GmbH, a joint venture between secunet and Cloud&Heat Technologies whose objective is to offer customers the highest-level digital security and protection against hacker attacks. This is done by making use of secustack's safe cloud operating system for secure data processing and storage. The goal of this joint venture is to create trustworthiness and sovereignty in the cloud. Secustack's cloud operating system is based on the open-source software "Openstack" providing an architecture for cloud computing to which then the security mechanism is added. The user data is always fully encrypted by making use of strong cryptography.

Cloud Computing became an important topic during this ongoing pandemic because it enables workers to work from home, thus saving costs and resources. It also provides flexibility as well as efficiency for companies. Therefore, many companies that did not use Cloud Computing previously are starting to implement this technology. However, according to a study done by the German digital industry association Bitkom, 70% of non-users hesitate to make the move because they fear that their sensitive data might not be protected well enough.

21 Bibliography

CyberTalk. 2022. Daunting cyber security statistics to know for 2022 - CyberTalk. [online] Available at:

https://www.cybertalk.org/2022/03/14/daunting-cyber-security-statistics-to-know-for-2022/ [Accessed 22 March 2022].

2022. [online] Available at:

IAccessed 23 March 2022].

2022. [online] Available at: https://fieldeffect.com/blog/what-is-the-future-of-cyber-security/ [Accessed 23 March 2022].

IoT Analytics. 2022. State of the IoT 2020: 12 billion IoT connections, surpassing non-IoT for the first time. [online] Available at: https://iot-analytics.com/state-of-the-iot-2020-12-billion-iot-connections-surpassing-non-iot-for-the-first-time/ [Accessed 23 March 2022].

Facts and Factors. 2022. *Industry 4.0 Market Size, Share - Global Forecast to 2026 | Facts & Factors*. [online] Available at: https://www.fnfresearch.com/global-industry-40-market-by-technology-artificial-intelligence-963 [Accessed 25 March 2022].

Industry 4.0 Market Size, 2., 2022. *Industry 4.0 Market Size, Share, Growth & Report [2021-2028]*. [online] Fortunebusinessinsights.com. Available at: https://www.fortunebusinessinsights.com/industry-4-0-market-102375 [Accessed 25 March 2022].

Contacts

		Dr. Kalliwoda Research GmbH,
Primary Research Fair Value Ar	nalysis International Roadshows	Steinstraße 24, D-64839 Münster, office Frankfurt Arndtstr. 47, 60325 Frankfurt
Head:	CEFA-Analyst; University of	Sectors: IT, Software, Electricals & Electronics,
Dr. Norbert Kalliwoda	Frankfurt/Main; PhD in Economics; Dipl Kfm., DiplHdl.	Mechanical Engineering, Logistics, Laser, Technology, Raw Materials
E-Mail: nk@kalliwoda.com		
Lukas Ankelmann	Junior-Analyst; University Nuremberg	Sectors: Technology, New Media, Food & Beverage
E-Mail: la@kalliwoda.com		
Noah Barnekow	Frankfurt School of Finance &	Sectors: Aviation, Automotive, Technology,
E-Mail: nb@kalliwoda.com	Management	Sustainability Approach
Alejandro Cuadros	Junior-Analyst; University of	Sectors: Technology, Video Games, Real Estate
E-Mail: ac@kalliwoda.com	Frankfurt/Main, Economics	
Leander Gruß	Junior-Analyst (University Rotterdam)	Sectors: eSports, Gaming, Consumer, Retail, Fashion
E-Mail: lg@kalliwoda.com		
Giuseppe Inserra	Junior-Analyst (Universita´ degli	Sectors: Gaming Entertainment, Fintech, Financial
E-Mail: gi@kalliwoda.com	Studi di Catania, Economics)	Markets, Commodities, Real Estate
Michael John	DiplIng. (Aachen)	Sectors: Chemicals, Chemical Engineering, Basic
E-Mail: mj@kalliwoda.com		Metals, Renewable Energies, Laser/Physics
Witold Konrad Kosinski	Finance & Banking Warsaw School of	Sectors: Consumer Goods, Trading Companies, Food
E-Mail: wk@kalliwoda.com	Econ,Master of Science; postgrad. Managem.Studies,Prepar.CFA Lev.2	& Beverages, Technology
Sebastian Krawczyk	Bachelor Management, Quant. Meth. in	Sectors: Quantitative Methods, Automotive,
E-Mail: sk@kalliwoda.com	Economics & Inf. Systems at Warsaw	Technology
L Mail. Ske Kalliwoda.com	School/Mannheim, CFA Can.	
Dr. Heinz Müller	Dr. agr, Diplagr. (Agrarökonomie)	Sectors: Agrochemicals, Consumer Chemicals,
E-Mail: hm@kalliwoda.com		Chemicals
Dr. Christoph Piechaczek	DiplBiologist; Technical University	Sectors: Biotech & Healthcare; Medical Technology
E-Mail: cp <u>@kalliwoda.com</u>	Darmstadt; Univ. Witten-Herdecke.	Pharmaceutical

Nele Rave	Lawyer; Native Speaker, German School	Legal adviser
E-Mail: nr@kalliwoda.com	London,	
Hellmut Schaarschmidt;	DiplGeophysicists; University of	Sectors: Oil, Regenerative Energies, Specialities
E-Mail: hs@kalliwoda.com	Frankfurt/Main.	Chemicals, Utilities
Dr. Erik Schneider	DiplBiologist; Technical University	Sectors: Biotech & Healthcare; Medical Technology
E-Mail: es@kalliwoda.com	Darmstadt; Univ. Hamburg.	Pharmaceutical
Leonard Schüppler	Junior-Analyst; WHU - Otto Beish. School	Sectors: Luxury Goods, Consumers, digital
E-Mail: ls@kalliwoda.com	of Management Vallendar	businesses.
Hans-Georg Sutter	DiplWirtschaftsingenieur University	Sectors: IT/e-commerce
E-Mail: hsu@kalliwoda.com	Kaiserslautern	
Marlon Schick	Bachelor Business Administration,	Sector: Automotive, Technology, IT, Oil,
E-Mail: ms@kalliwoda.com	Frankfurt School of Finance and Management	Regenerative Energies, Specialities Chemicals, Utilities
Also view Sales and Earnings	Analyst of this research:	
Estimates:	Du Naghagt Kalling da CEEA	
DD KALLIMODA DECEMBE:	Dr. Norbert Kalliwoda, CEFA	
DR. KALLIWODA RESEARCH on		
Terminals of Bloomberg,		
Thomson Reuters, vwd group		
and Factset		

Company Analysis

Material Information, Disclosures and Disclaimers

A. Material information

Investment in financial instruments and securities (e.g. shares, bonds) is generally associated with high risks. It is possible that the investors lose some or all the invested money. Potential investors should be aware of the fact that prices of securities could fall and rise. The income from such an_investment might be considerable fluctuations. Investment strategies are not always appropriate and past results are not a guarantee for the future performance. Investors should make their own and independent decisions as to whether a risky investment.

B. Disclosures according to Section 34b of the German Securities Trading Act (WpHG) and to the German Regulation governing the Analysis of Financial Instruments (FinAnV).

I. Information about author, company held accountable, regulatory authority:

Company responsible for the content of this document: DR. KALLIWODA RESEARCH GmbH, Frankfurt am Main, Germany.

Regulatory authority for DR. KALLIWODA RESEARCH GmbH is the Federal Financial Supervisory Authority (BaFin), Graurheindorfer Straße 108, 53117 Bonn, Germany and Lurgiallee 12, 60439 Frankfurt am Main, Germany.

Author of this research: Dr. Norbert Kalliwoda, Analyst, CEO and founder of DR. KALLIWODA RESEARCH GmbH.

II. Additional Information:

1. Sources of information:

Essential sources of information for the compilation of this document are publications from domestic and international information services and media (e.g. Bloomberg, dpa-AFX, Reuters, VWD, among others), financial press (e.g. Allgemeine Zeitung Frankfurter, Börsenzeitung, Financial Times Handelsblatt and others), specialized trade press, published statistics, rating agencies as well as publications by peer group companies and the company itself. Additionally, conservation has been held with the management of the company. This document was made available to the company before publishing to ensure the correctness of the information provided.

2. Summary of the basis of valuation principles and methods used to prepare this document:

Within the scope of the evaluation of companies the following valuation methods are applied: Multiple-based models (Price/Earnings, Price/Cash-flow, Price/Book value, EV/Sales, EV/EBIT, EV/EBITDA), peer group comparisons, historic valuation methods, discounting models, sum-of-the-parts-approaches, substance-valuation methods and swot-analyses. The valuation principles and models are dependent on macroeconomic factors, such as interest rates, exchange rates, raw materials and on basic assumptions about the economy. Besides, the market moods and market sentiment affect the valuation of enterprises. The approaches are based on expectations that could change rapidly and without advance warning according on developments specific to individual branch. The valuation results and fair values derived from the models might therefore change accordingly. The ratings are the evaluation results and refer to a fair value pricing reflecting a time-horizon of up general relate to a twelve-months. Nevertheless, evaluation results are subject to changing market conditions and constitute merely a snapshot. The evaluation results and fair values may be reached faster or slower than expected by the analysts. The results and fair values may to be scale upwards or downwards.

DR. KALLIWODA RESEARCH GmbH uses the following rating model:

BUY:	Based on our analysis, we expect the stock to appreciate and produce a total
	return of at least 10% over the next twelve months
ACCUMULATE:	Based on our analysis, we expect the stock to appreciate and produce a total
	return between 5% - 10% over the next twelve months
HOLD:	Based on our analysis, we expect the stock to produce a total return
	between -5% and +5% over the next twelve months
REDUCE:	Based on our analysis, we expect the stock to cause a negative return
	between -5% and -10% over the next twelve months
SELL:	Based on our analysis, we expect the stock to cause a negative return
	exceeding -10% over the next twelve months

For the sustainability ranking DR. KALLIWODA RESEARCH GmbH uses the 17 United Nations Sustainable Development Goals, where each goal is classified as follows:

-1	The company negatively contributes to the goal.

0	The company does not contribute to the goal at all.	
1	The company positively contributes to the goal.	
2	The company profoundly contributes to the goal.	
3	The company significantly contributes to the goal.	

From adding up the given numbers, it is being set in a ratio to the maximum points (e.g. 51). The following model shows the note procurement:

А	100% - 70%	The company exceptionally contributes to the goal.
В	70% - 50%	The company promotes the transition to sustainability.
С	50% - 30%	The company is on the way to sustainability.
D	30% - 10%	The company minimizes its negative impact.
E	10% - 0%	The company is not sustainable.

Date of first publication of this document: 15th August 2022.

4. Updates:

A specific update of this document has currently not been set. The research reflects the author's judgement on the date of this publication and is subject to change without any notice. The document might be incomplete or reduced and it may not contain all information concerning the company covered. It is in the sole decision of DR. KALLIWODA RESEARCH GmbH whether and when a potential update of this research is made.

III. Disclosures about potential conflicts of interest:

The business model of DR. KALLIWODA RESEARCH GmbH is based on economic relationships with issuer company and equity transactions to be performed relating to the issuer's stock. Dr. Kalliwoda Research has entered into an agreement about the creation of this document with the company which is, or whose financial instruments are the issue of this research.

Conflicts of interest may be in existence with employees of DR. KALLIWODA | RESEARCH GmbH who are the authors of this document as well as other persons that were involved in the preparation of this research or related parties.

Following conflicts of interest might exist:

DR. KALLIWODA RESEARCH GmbH employees or other persons that were involved in the preparation of this document or related parties are possibly holders of instruments that are mentioned in this research (or that are linked to these instruments) or might become holders and could regularly trade the emitter's securities or securities based on these issues as principal or agent.

DR. KALLIWODA RESEARCH GmbH employees or other persons that were involved in the preparation of this document or related parties could have participated in leading a consortium for the emitter via a public offering of the financial instruments that are the subject of this research.

DR. KALLIWODA RESEARCH GmbH employees or other persons that were involved in the preparation of this document or related parties might have been party to an agreement on the provision of investment banking services with the emitter which is the subject of this research, or have received services or a pledge to perform under the terms of such an arrangement during the same period.

DR. KALLIWODA RESEARCH GmbH employees or other persons that were involved in the preparation of this document or related parties may have other substantial economic interests concerning to the emitter which is the subject of this research.

DR. KALLIWODA RESEARCH GmbH employees or other persons that were involved in the preparation of this document or related parties might have been party to an agreement with the company, which is the subject of this research, resulting in receiving the compensation for preparation of this research.

DR. KALLIWODA RESEARCH GmbH employees or other persons that were involved in the preparation of this document or related parties received the feedback concerning the company profile and SWOT from the company, which is the subject of this research, before publishing this report to the public.

Important: Please get familiar with possible risks and possible conflicts of interest in the disclosure and disclaimer at the end of this report, especially for this report: 6. and 7.

The analysts have limited access to gain information that possibly could constitute a conflict of interest for the institution DR. KALLIWODA RESEARCH GmbH keeps insider registers appropriate to sec. 15

WpHG for assignees that normally have approach to inside information. Insiders' dealings appropriate to sec. 14 WpHG categorically are prohibited.

The analysts that composed this research did not receive or acquire shares in the emitter that is the subject of this document at any time. The analysts mentioned above herby certify that all the views expressed accurately reflect the individual views about the emitter. No part of the indemnity was, is or will be, directly or indirectly, linked to the evaluation result or views expressed by the analyst in this research.

C. Disclaimer:

This document is published and being distributed by DR. KALLIWODA RESEARCH GmbH solely for informational purposes and for the personal use by persons in Germany. This research is not intended to be in any form an offer or advice to buy or sell the securities referred to herein. This research is intended to provide information to assist investors in making their own investment decisions. Any decision to purchase any securities of the emitter must be made solely on the basis of information contained in the offering documents from the emitter relating to such securities and not on the contents hereof. Furthermore, our recommendation may not be fully suitable to every investor, depending on their investment objective, individual financial situation or targeted holding period.

Potential investors should seek professional and individual information and advice before making their investment decisions. This document neither constitutes a contract or any kind of obligation.

Neither this document nor any copy, in whole or in part, thereof may be distributed in any other jurisdiction where its distribution might be restricted by law, and person into whose published this document comes should inform and observe themselves about any such restrictions.

The information within this document has been obtained from sources believed by DR. KALLIWODA RESEARCH GmbH to be reliable. DR. KALLIWODA RESEARCH GmbH does not examine the information to be verify and complete, nor warrantees its correctness and completeness. Although due attention has been taken in compilation this document, it cannot be excluded that the information given is not complete or the document contains mistakes.

The liability of DR. KALLIWODA RESEARCH GmbH shall be restricted to gross negligence and willful misconduct. All aspects penned in this document are those of DR. KALLIWODA RESEARCH GmbH respectively the authors and subject to modify without notice. Possible faults or incompleteness of this document may be reformed by DR. KALLIWODA RESEARCH GmbH and do not constitute reasons for liability, neither regarding indirect nor to direct or consequential losses.

Moreover, DR. KALLIWODA RESEARCH GmbH does not accept any responsibility and liability for any damage arising from using of this research or its contents or otherwise arising in relation herewith. In each case, the liability and responsibility of DR. KALLIWODA RESEARCH GmbH is limited to typical, predictable damages and the liability for any direct or indirect losses is excluded.

This document is subject to the laws of the Federal Republic of Germany. Place of jurisdiction is Frankfurt am Main, Germany.

This document or any copy, in whole or in part thereof, may not be distributed in any other jurisdiction where its distribution might be restricted by law and persons who have access to this document must inform and observe themselves about any such restrictions.

In the United Kingdom this document is to be distributed only to persons who are described in Section 11 (3) of the Financial Services Act 1986 (Investment Advertisements) (Exemptions) Order 1996 (as amended). This research may not be distributed and forwarded directly or indirectly to any other group of individuals. The distribution of this document in other international jurisdictions may be restricted by law and individuals who possess this study should inform themselves of any existing restrictions and comply with them.

Neither this document nor any copy of it may be taken or transmitted into the United States of America, Canada, Japan or Australia or distributed, directly or indirectly, in the United States of America, Canada, Japan or Australia or to any resident thereof. Any Failure to comply with these restrictions may constitute a violation of United States, Canadian, Japanese or Australian securities laws or the law of any other jurisdiction.

By confirming this document, the reader or user agrees and accepts to be bound by all the foregoing provisions and this disclaimer. Besides, the user accepts not to distribute this document to unauthorized persons. The user of this document compensated DR. KALLIWODA RESEARCH GmbH for any disadvantages, damages, claims, and losses resulting from or in relation with the unauthorized use of this document.

© 2022 DR. KALLIWODA RESEARCH GmbH, Arndtstraße 47, D-60325 Frankfurt am Main. All rights reserved.